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Tokio Marine CAT Bond Fund
Credit Suisse Management Cayman Limited
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1104, Cayman Islands
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2018 12
20,977,190.64 72.06
4,019,709.47 13.81
2,415,665.69 8.30
300,976.74 1.03
2,113,588.43 7.26
29,827,130.98 102.46
716,751.11 2.46
29,110,379.87
3,231,252,166 100-00
2018 12
1,499,526,519 62.49
287,343,575 11.97
172,680,643 7.20
21,514,921 0.90
151,087,053 6.30
2,132,152,710 88.86
267,409,444 11.14
2,399,562,154 100.00
2018 12

GALILEO RE L 9.91238

2020/11/6 | 20,000| 100.00| 2,000,000.00| 100.26] 2,005,100.00 3.9
06NOV20 144A F
GOLDEN ST RE 1 0.0

2019/7/8 | 20,000( 100.01|2,000,138.25| 99.95[1,998,950.00 3.9
08JUL19 144A FRN
MERNA RE LTD 0.0

2020/4/8 | 20,000| 100.23|2,004,595.20] 99.69]1,993,750.00 3.9
08APR20 144A FRN
URSA RE LTD 0.0 27MAY20

2020/5/27 | 20,000 100.41|2,008,185.15| 99.05| 1,980,900.00 3.9
144A FRN
RESIDENTIAL RE 0.0

2024/12/6 | 15,000 100.00| 1,500,000.00| 99.61|1,494,168.75 2.9
06DEC24 144A FRN
URSA RE LTD 0.0 10DEC22

2022/12/10| 15,000 100.46] 1,506,936.58| 98.54|1,478,156.25 2.9

144A FRN
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HEXAGON REINSU 6.5

2025/1/17 | 12,500| 100.00| 1,466,187.95| 99.25]1,418,220.21 2.8
17JAN25 144A FRN
KENDALL RE L 7.68238
2024/5/6 | 12,500( 100.00{ 1,250,000.00| 98.62]1,232,703.13 2.4
06MAY24 144A F
RESIDENTIAL RE 0.0
2024/12/6 | 12,500| 100.00| 1,250,000.00| 97.72]1,221,484.38 2.4
06DEC24 144A FRN
INTERNATIONA 9.01963
10 2021/7/15 | 10,000| 100.65| 1,006,510.68| 100.15| 1,001,487.50 2.0
15JUL21 144A F
EAST LANE RE V 0.0
11 2023/3/13 | 10,000| 100.65f 1,006,542.99| 100.12] 1,001,200.00 2.0
13MAR23 144A FRN
NORTHSHORE RE 0.0
12 2020/7/6 | 10,000( 101.01}1,010,148.98] 100.01|1,000,125.00 2.0
06JUL20 144A FRN
TAILWIND RE LT 0.0
13 2025/1/8 | 10,000( 100.00f 1,000,000.00] 99.89| 998,900.00 2.0
08JAN25 144A FRN
ALAMO RE LTD 0.0
14 2023/6/8 | 10,000| 100.67|1,006,652.31] 99.86| 998,637.50 2.0
08JUN23 144A FRN
INTERNATIONA 8.0335
15 2020/5/19 | 10,000 100.78| 1,007,832.22| 99.70] 997,012.50 2.0
19MAY20 144A FR
METROCAT RE LT 0.0
16 2020/5/8 | 10,000( 100.72|1,007,222.00] 99.60| 995,975.00 2.0
08MAY20 144A FRN
RIVERFRONT RE 0.0
17 2021/1/15 | 10,000 100.80| 1,008,005.65| 99.59]| 995,916.67 2.0
15JAN21 144A FRN
QUEEN STR X1 7.96638
18 2022/4/8 | 10,000( 100.91|1,009,142.71] 99.54| 995,387.50 2.0
08APR22 144A F
KILIMANJARO 8.0205
19 2021/4/20 | 10,000 101.51|1,015,117.71| 99.34] 993,400.00 2.0
20APR21 144A FRN
ARMOR RE 11 LT 0.0
20 2023/6/8 | 10,000( 100.00{ 1,000,000.00| 99.13| 991,325.00 2.0
08JUN23 144A FRN
SANDERS RE LT 0.01
21 2022/4/7 | 10,000( 100.00{ 1,000,000.00] 98.96| 989,633.33 1.9
07APR22 144A FRN
CRANBERRY RE 4.48063
22 2023/7/13 | 10,000 100.57|1,005,690.42| 98.89]| 988,850.00 1.9
13JUL23 144A F
EVERGLADES RE 0.0
23 2024/5/4 | 10,000( 100.00f 1,000,000.00| 98.87| 988,662.50 1.9
04MAY24 144A FRN
GALILEI RE L 8.73025
24 2024/1/8 | 10,000( 101.62|1,016,171.01] 98.86| 988,575.00 1.9
08JAN24 144A F
SANDERS RE L 5.64375
25 2021/12/6 | 10,000 100.09| 1,000,904.32| 98.68| 986,800.00 1.9
06DEC21 144A F
KILIMANJARO R 3.75
26 2019/11/25| 10,000/ 100.86| 1,008,576.94| 98.45| 984,537.50 1.9
25N0V19 144A FRN
KILIMANJARO 14.72825
27 2026/5/5 | 10,000( 100.00{ 1,000,000.00| 97.24| 972,387.50 1.9
05MAY26 144A F
CAELUS RE IV L 0.0
28 2024/3/6 | 10,000| 102.33|1,023,302.55| 96.02| 960,187.50 1.9
06MAR24 144A FRN
RESIDENTIAL RE 0.0
29 2024/6/6 | 10,000 98.86| 988,590.02| 78.23| 782,250.00 1.5
06JUN24 144A FRN
INTERNATIONA 4.91613
30 2021/3/15| 7,500 100.00| 750,000.00| 99.49]| 746,193.75 1.5

15MAR21 144A F
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2018 12
2018 12
2018 2018 12

2018 32,797,257.03 3,640,495.53 9.98 1,108
2018 28,480,796.53 3,161,368.41 9.80 1,088
2018 29,238,101.47 3,245,429.26 9.78 1,086
2018 29,858,433.30 3,314,286.10 9.83 1,001
2018 30,192,862.74 3,351,407.76 9.87 1,096
2018 31,065,541.99 3,448,275.16 9.91 1,100
2018 32,450,225.44 3,601,975.02 9.94 1,103
2018 32,837,305.20 3,644,940.88 9.99 1,109
2018 32,797,257.03 3,640,495.53 9.98 1,108
2018 32,867,380.64 3,648,279.25 9.96 1,106
2018 10 33,618,261.75 3,731,627.05 10.02 1,112
2018 11 32,838,546.26 3,645,078.63 9.94 1,103
2018 12 29,110,379.87 3,231,252.17 9.93 1,102
2018 2,674,545,379 9,780

2018 2,505,540,227 9,737

2018 2,591,709,781 9,707

2018 2,646,215,129 9,726

2018 2,672,758,434 9,750

2018 2,697,469,781 9,767

2018 2,722,258,564 9,787

2018 2,631,027,016 9,811

2018 2,674,545,379 9,780

2018 2,615,590,763 9,779
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2018 10 2,624 ,468,088 9,812
2018 11 2,429,471,896 9,700
2018 12 2,399,562,154 9,658
2017 28 2018 12
2018
2018 10 0.005 0.555 20
2017 28 2018 12 0.005 0.555 20
2017 28 2018
2017 28 2018
0.20 2.20
100x +
2018
2017 28 2017 12 29 2.70 2.94
2018 2018 12 31 2.11 0.29

100x +

2017
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2017 28 2018 2018
3,287,246.637 0 3,287,246.637
3,287,246.637 0 3,287,246.637

284,478.038 11,000.024 273,478.014
284,478.038 11,000.024 273,478.014
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Tokio Marine CAT Bord Fund
Financial staternenis
Awgrst 31, 2018

Statement of financial position
August 31, 2018

Note August 31, 2018
Ush
Asspty
Cash 1.135,588
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
{cost: UUSID 56.720.688) 4.5.6 35.397.271
Interest receivable 445 585
Other assets 101,973
Total assets 57080417
Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss
{cost: mil) 4.3,0 20,557
Acerued expenses 142,610
Total liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to
the holders of redeemable units) 163,167
Net assels attributable to the holders of redeemable
units 56.917.250
et assets atfributable to:
JBEY Semi-Annual Distribution Class units (TPY) 2.674.545,379
TPY Semi-Annual Distribution Class unils (USI) 24.119.993
USD Semi-Annual Distribution Class units (US13) 32,797,257
Units outstanding:
JPY Semi-Annual Distribution Class unils 8 273.478.014
USD Semi-Annual Distribution Class units 8 3.287.246.637
et asset value per unit:
JPY Semi-Annual Distnbution Class units (JPY) 9,780
UISD Semi-Annual Distribution Class units (1L513) 10
The accompanying notes form an imtegral part of these financial statements. 4
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Tekio Marime CAT Bond Fund
Financial statenenis
Awgnst 31, 2018

Statement of comprehensive income
For the period August 15, 2017 (date of establishment) to August 31, 2018

For the period
August 15, 2017 (date

of establishment) to
August 31, 2018
Note USD
Wet loss on investmenits 7 {1,352.870)
Interest income 2,378.051
Net exchange loss on foreign currency transactions {(75,070%
Net investment gain 950,111
Interest expense 27
Investment Manager fees 9 333.624
Administration fees 68,412
Trustee fees 9 10,407
Custodian fees 12,289
Fee Agent fees 9 57.153
Distributor fees 285.411
Agent member company fees 23,784
Other fees 102,471
Total operating expenses 294,288
Changes in net assets attributable to the holders of
redeemable units 55,823
The accompeanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 5
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Tokio Marine CAT Bomd Fund
Financiad staternenis
Awgnst 31, 2018

Statement of changes in net assets attributable to the holders of
redeemable units
For the period August 15, 2017 (date of establishment) to August 31, 2018

Note Total
USD
Net assets attributable to the holders of redeem able units
at August 15, 2017 (date of establishment) -
[ssue of units 57.834.906
Repurchase of units {973,479
Change in net assets attributable to the holders of
redeemable units 55,823
Net assets attributable to the holders of redeemable units
at August 31, 2018 56,917,250
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial siatements. 6
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Tekio Marime CAT Bond Fund
Financiad staternenis
Awgnst 31, 2018

Statement of cash flows
For the period August 15, 2017 (date of establishment) to August 31, 2018

For the period
Aungust 15, 2017
(date of
establishment) to
August 31, 2018
USD
Operating activities
Change in netl assets attributable to the holders of redeemable units 55,823
Purchase of debt instruments (63, 727.046)
Proceeds from sale of debt instruments 7,010,450
Adjustment for items not imvolving cash:
Realized gain on debt instruments {4.092)
Unrealized loss on debt instruments 1,373,897
Net unrealized gain on cwrrency forwards (20,923)
Net changes in non-cash operaling balances:
Other assels {101.973)
Acecrued expenses 142,610
Interest receivable (445 585)

Net cash flows used in operating activities

Financing activities

(55,725,839)

Proceeds from units 1ssued 57,334,906
Fayment due to repurchase of units (973.479)
Cash flows from financing activities 30,861,427
Net increase in cash 1,135,588
Cash at beginning of the period -
Cash at end of the period 1,135,588
Supplementary information on cash flows from operating activities

Interest received 1.912.234
Interest paid (737

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 7

93/202



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Tekio Marime CAT Bond Fund
Financiad statenenis
Awgnst 31, 2018

MNotes to financial statements

1 Domicile and activities

Tokio Marine CAT Bond Fund (the “Trust™) is a series-trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust
(Cayman) II (the “Master Trust™). The Master Trust is an exempted unit trust registered under
Section 74 of the Trust Law of the Cayman Islands on December 2, 2013 and registered under the
Mutual Funds Law of the Cayman Islands on December 2, 2013, The Trust was established on
August 15, 2017 and commenced operations on Seplember 28, 2017, The address of its registered
office 15 190 Elgin Avenue, George Town, Grand Cayman, KY 1-9007, Cayman Islands.

The investment objective of the Trust is to seek to provide investors with income gains through
investing mainly in catastrophe bonds (“CAT Bonds™). In addition, the Trust can invest in
msurance linked securities other than CAT Bonds, insuranee derivatives linked bonds and cash
and money market securitics (logether with CAT Bonds, the “debt instruments™). CAT Bonds are
debt instruments that transfer the risk of catastrophic events from entities such as insurance
companics, reinsurance companics, corporations and governments to the capital markets,
Investors receive a risk premium in the form of a vield in exchange for bearing the risk of losses
from pre-defined natural and non-natural catastrophic events, such as carthquakes, windstorms,
morlality and other catastrophe related events, The principal amount of any given CAT Bond will
be potentially reduced (and subject to partial or, in some cases. total loss) upon the cecurrence of
an event to which the CAT Bond 1s contractually linked.

It is expected that the assets of the Trust will mainly be denominated in (but not limited to)
currencies such as US Dollars and Euro, Where practicable, the Investment Manager seeks o
hedge the currency exposure of assets attributable to a Class and denominated in currencies other
than the currency of denomination of that Class with the currency of denomination of that Class,
The Investment Manager generally can use spoi contracts, forward foreign exchange contracis
and non-deliverable forwards (including cross forward foreign exchange contracts) (together, the
“Cuwrency Forwards™) in order to attempt to hedge against cuwrrency fluctuations.

The Trust has 2 classes of units: USD Semi-Annual Distribulion Class Unils { denominated in US

Dollar), and JPY Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units (denominated in Japanese Yen) (cach a
Class™), as defined in Appendix 26 of the Offering Memorandum relating to the Master Trust,
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Tekis Marime CAT Bond Fund
Financiad statenenis
Awgnst 31, 2018

Notes to financial statements (continued)
1 Domicile and activities {continued)

Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited, a company incorporated under the Companies
Law (as amended) of the Cavman Islands, has been appointed as the Trust’s manager. (the
“Manager”™) under the Trust Deed. The Manager is responsible for investing the assets of the
Trust and has the power 1o issue units in different classes and'or series and to repurchase units,
The Manager has delegated all the rights. obligations, privileges, powers, duties. trusts and
discretions vested in the Manager by the terms of the Trust Deed with respect to the investment,
management and re-investment of the assets of the Trust and responsibility for the discretionary
day-to-day investment decision-making over the portfolio of debt instruments (the "Sub-Advised
Portfolio") and the management of the Currency Forwards to Tokio Marine Asset Management
Co., Ltd. (the “Invesiment Manager™). The Investment Manager has in tuwn delegated
responsibility for the day-to-day investment decision making over the Sub-Advised Portfolio to
Tokio Marine Asset Management (USA), Ltd.. (the “Sub-Investment Manager™).

Credit Suisse Intemnational (the “Fee Agent™ is responsible for paying cerlain ongoing and
operational costs and expenses of the Trust, including manager fee. auditing costs that are not
included in the audit fees and expense, annual fees pavable in respect of the Trust or the Master
Trust to government bodies and agencies. and insurance costs (if any) (the “Ordinary Costs™),

The Trust’s trustee is Elian Trustee (Cayman) Limited (the “Trustee™) and administrator is The
Bank of New York Mellon, Singapore Branch (the *“Adminmistrator™).

All references to net assets throughout this document refer to net assets attributable to the holders
of redeemable units unless otherwise stated.

2 Basis of preparation

These financial statements are prepared i accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS™).

() Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for financial
nstruments at fair value through profit or loss, which are measured at fair value.

The Trust has adopled Investment Entities { Amendments to [FRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27)
{2012) (the amendments) with a date of initial application of August 15, 2017 (date of
establishment). Management concluded that the Trust meets the definition of an investment
entity.

Amendments to [FRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 clanfy that an investment entity may provide
mvestment-related services to third partics — even if those activitics are substantial to the
entity — as long as the entity continues to meet the definition of an investment entity, Based
on initial assessment. these amendments did not have a material impact on the Trust. This is
because the Trust does not have any subsidiaries.
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Tokio Marine CAT Bormd Fund
Finarcial statenenis
Awgnst 31, 2018

Notes to financial statements (continued)

2 Basis of preparation (continued)
(B Functional and presentation currency

The functional and presentation currency of the financial statements is the United States
Dollar (*USD™) which reflects the fact that the Trust’s operations, reporting to unitholder as
well as settlement of the majority of fees and expenses are carried out in USD,

(ol Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires the Trust’s
management o make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and the reported amounts of assets, habilities, income and expenses. Actual resulis
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlving assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions 1o
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affeets both current and future periods.

Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in
applyving accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized
in the financial statements are described in Notes 4 and 3.

fd

-

New standards and inferpretations not yvet adopted

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for
annual periods beginning after August 13, 2017 and carlier application is permitted; however,
the Trust has not carly applied these new or amended standards in preparing these financial
statements. The one new standard potentially relevant to the Trust is IFRS 9. Financial
Instruments, which is discussed below. IFRS 9, published in July 2014, replaces the existing
guidance in IAS 39, Financial Instruments:

*  Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification
and measurement of financial instruments. a new expected credit loss model for
calculating  impairment on financial assets and new general hedge accounting
requirements. It also carries forward the guidance on recognition and derecognition of
financial instruments from IAS 39 [FRS 9 is cffective for annual reporling periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2018, with early adoption permitted.

o Classification of financial assets and financial labilities. IFRS 9 contains three principal
classification categories for financial asscls: measured at amortized cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCT) and fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL). IFRS 9 classification is generally based on the business model in which a
financial asset is managed and its contractual cash flows. The standard eliminates the
existing IAS 39 categories of held-to-maturity, loans and receivables and available-for-
sale, Under IFRS 9, dervatives embedded in contracts where the host is a Anancial asset

10
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Tokio Marine CAT Bormd Fund
Finarcial statenenis
Awgnst 31, 2018

Notes to financial statements (continued)
2 Basis of preparation (continued)
(dl New standards and interpretations not vet adopted (continued)

in the scope of the standard are never bifurcated. Instead, the whole hybrid instrument 15
assessed for classification. IFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements in TAS 39 for
the classification of financial lhabilities,

However, although under TAS 39 all fair value changes of liabilities designated under the fair
value option are recognized mn profit or loss, under IFRS 9 fair value changes are generally
presented as follows:

s the amount of change in the fair value that is atiributable to changes in the credit risk of
the liability is presented in other comprehensive income; and
» the remaining amount of change in the fair value is presented in profit or loss.

Based on the Trust's initial assessment, this standard is not expected to have a materal
impact on the classification of financial assets and financial labilities of the Trust., This is
because;

s the financial instruments classified as held-for-trading under 1AS 39 (Derivatives) will
continue to be classified as such under IFRS 9,

o other financial instruments currently measured at FVTPL under IAS 39 are designated
into this category because they are managed on a fair value basis in accordance with a
documented investment strategy. Accordingly. these financial instruments will be
mandatorily measured at FVTPL under IFRS 9; and

s financial instruments currently measured at amortized cost include cash balances, interest
receivable. other assets, accrued expenses. This meets the solely principal and interest
eriterion and is held in a held-to-collect business model. Accordingly, it will continue to
be measured at amortized cost under IFRS 9.

Tmpairment of fingncial assers: IFRS 9 replaces the “ncurred loss™ model in IAS 39 with an
‘expected credit loss” model. The new impairment model also applics to certain loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts but not to equity investments. Under IFES @,
eredit losses are recognized carlier than under TAS 39, Based on the Trust's initial assessment,
changes to the impairment model are not expected to have a material impact on the financial
asscts of the Trust. This is because:

o the majority of the financial assets are measured at FVTPL and the impairment
requirements do not apply to such instruments; and

o the financial assets at amortized cost are short-term (i.e. no longer than 12 months) and of
high credit quality, Accordingly, the expected credit losses on such assels are expected to
be small.
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Notes to financial statements (continued)

2 Basis of preparation (continued)
(d) New standards and mterpretations not vet adopted (continued)

Hedge acconnting: The Trust does not apply hedge accounting; therefore, IFRS 9 hedge

accounting-related changes do not have an impact on the financial statements of the Trust,
3  Significant accounting policies
The significant accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently by the Trust.
{a) Financial assets and financial labilities
{1} Classification

The Trust classifies its investments in debt instruments and derivative financial
instruments as financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. These
financial assets and liabilitics are not classified as held for trading but are managed and
their performance is evaluated on a fair value basis in accordance with the Trust’s
documented investment strategy. Financial assets classified as loans and receivables
comprise of cash and interest receivable. Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are nol quoted in the current
market. Financial liabilities carried at amortized cost include accrued expenses.

(i} Hecognition

Financial assets and labilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized initially
on the trade date at which the Trust becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Other financial assets and liabilitics are recognized on the date they are
originated,

Financial labilities are not recognized unless one of the parties has performed or the
contract 15 a derivative contract not exempled from the scope of [AS 39,

(i) Measurement

Financial assets and finaneial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are measured
initially at fair value, with transaction costs recognized in the statement of comprehensive
income. Financial assets and financial liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss are
measured mitially at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to it
acquisition or issue,

Subsequent to initial recognition. all financial assets and financial Kabilities classified at
fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with changes in their fair value
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income
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Notes to financial statements (continued)

3 Significant acconnting policies (continued)
fa) Financial assets and financigl labilities (continued)
fift) Meastrement (contined)

Financial assets and liabilities other than those at fair value through profit or loss are
carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method, less impairment losses,
if any. This is considered to approximate fair value due to the short-term or immediate
nature of these instruments.

“Fair value™ ic the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

When available, the Trust measures the fair value of an instrument using quoted prices in
an active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are
readily and regularly available and represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis, If a market for a financial instrument is not active,
the Trust establishes fair value using a valuation technique agreed by the Trustee.
Valuation techniques include wsing recent arm’s length tramsactions between
knowledgeable, willing parties (if available), reference to the current fair value of other
instruments that are substantially the same and other pricing models. Alternatively the
fair value may be determined using reputable pricing sources (such as pricing agencies)
or indicative prices from bond/debt market makers. Broker quotes as obtained from the
pricing sources may be indicative and not executable or binding. The Trust would
exercise judement and estumates on the quantity and quality of pricing sources used.

Realized gains or losses on sale of debt instruments are caleulated using the weighted
average cost method. The unrealized gains or losses represent the difference between the
carrving amount of a financial instrument at the beginning of the reporting period or
transaction price when purchased and its carrying amount at the end of the period.
Realized and unrealized gains or losses on investments are recorded in the statement of
comprehensive income,

(vl fnvestment in debr instruments

The Trust holds mvestments in CAT Bonds whose prices are governed by a specific
pricing methodology following the Trust's offering documents. The CAT Bonds®
valuation is based solely on the prices received from 4 brokers: Swiss Re Capital Markets,
Aon Securities Inc., Willis Towers Watson Securities and GC Securities. The CAT
Bonds™ price is caleulated based on the available brokers' average mid-price. which is
derived by averaging their bid and ask prices. In the case where the total divergence of
average ask price and average bid price against average mid-price equals or exceeds 5%,
such bond will be valued using the average bid price.
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Notes to financial statements (continued)

3 Significant acconnting policies (continued)
fa) Financial assets and financigl labilities (continued)
(v Tnvesiment in derivative financial instriaments

The Trost holds investments in denvative financial instruments in the form of currency
forward contracts. The fair value of the currency forward contracts is the exchange
difference between the contract rate and the applicable forward rate,

(vi) Derecopnition
The Trust derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the financial asset expire or it ransters the financial asset and the transfer qualifies

for derecognition in accordance with the requirements of TAS 39,

The Trust derccognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged, cancelled or expired.

(bl Cash

Cash comprise amounts with original maturitics of three months or less deposited into current
accounts held at an intemational financial institution.

ol CGifsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented n the
statement of financial position when, and only when, the Trust has a legal right to set off the
recognized amounts and it intends either to scttle on a net basis or to realize the assel and
settle the liability simultanecusly. The format adopted in these financial statements is to
present the gross amounts of the financial assets and financial liabilities in the statement of
financial position. while the offsetting and net amount of the financial assets and financial
liabilities are presented under Note 5 — Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilifies.

fdl Interest mcome

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportionate basis using the effective interest
method. It includes interest income from cash, and coupons from the CAT bonds,

el Expenses

All operating expenses are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income on an
accrual basis.
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Notes to financial statements (continued)

3 Significant acconnting policies (continued)

() Foreign currency transactions

Investments and other assets and habilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
nto US Dollar amounts at the date of valuation. Purchases and sales of securities and income
and expense items denominated in foreign currencies are translated into US Dollar amounts
on the respective dates of such transactions,

Reported net realized foreign exchange gains or losses resulting from changes in foreign
exchange rates on investments and from other transactions denominated in foreign currencies
are included in the net gain or loss on investments and net exchange gain or loss on foreign
currency lransactions, respectively. in the stalement of comprehensive income.

(g Net assets attributable to the holders of redeemable units

The Trustee stands possessed of the assets of the Trust in a trust fund for the Trust's
unitholders subject to the provisions of the Master Trust Deed and the Appendix. The Trust
classifies financial instruments issued as financial liabilities or equity nstruments in
accordance with the substance of the contractual terms of the instruments. The Trust has two
classes of redeemable units in issue. These are the most subordinate classes of financial
instruments of the Trust and the units rank pari passu in all material respects. The two classes
have identical terms and conditions other than currency of denomination. the portfolio assets,
distribution rates and minimum issue size. The redeemable units provide the unitholders with
the right to require repurchase for cash at a value proportionate to the unitholders™ share in
the Trust’s net assets at each repurchase date and also in the event of the Trust’s liquidation.

Due to the differing features of each class of financial instrument. the Trust’s redeemable
units are classified as financial labilities in accordance with IAS 32, This liability is
measured at the amount which the Trust is obligated to pay upon repurchase. which is based
on the trading net asset value calculated in accordance with the Trust’s offering documents,

() Net asset value per unit

The net asset value per unil s calculated in accordance with the Master Trust Deed by
dividing the Trust’s net assets attributable to the holders of the redeemable units in each class
by the number of outstanding units in cach class.

i) Taxation

The Trust is exempt from paying taxes on its income, profits or capital gain in the Cayman
Islands. The Master Trust has received an undertaking from the Govemor in Cabinet of the
Cayman Islands exempting it from all local income, profit and capital taxes for a period of 50
years from the date of establishment of the Master Trust. Accordingly, no provision for
income taxes is included in these financial statements.
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Notes to financial statements (continued)

4

Financial risk management

The Trust’s investment portfolio comprises of investment in CAT Bonds, other insurance linked
secunties and Curreney Forwards, The Trust’s investing activities expose it to various types of
risk that are associated with the finaneial instruments and markets in which it invests. The most
important tvpes of financial risks to which the Trust are exposed to are market risk, credil risk and
Digquidity risk. The nature and extent of the financial instruments outstanding at the statement of
financial position date and the risk management policies employed by the Trust are discussed
below:

fa) Merket risk

Market risk embodies the potential for both losses and gains and includes price risk, currency
nisk and interest rate nisk.

The Trust’s strategy on the management of investment risk is driven by ils investment
objective and mvestment restrictions stated oul in its offermg documents. The Trust seeks to
provide investors with income gains through investing mainly in CA'T Bonds amongst other
insurance linked securities. In selecting the Trust’s portfolio of investments, the Sub-
Investment Manager takes into account the following factors:

s [ts analysis of CAT Bonds and the related markets (including, without limitation, the
trend of CAT Bonds, the reinsurance market and investment trends in that sector);

o The risk characterization {including, without limitation, earthquake and hurricane) of
each CAT Bond: and

&  The region and spread level of each CAT Bond.

In addition to the above factors, the Sub-Investment Manager, as far as possible, manages the
debt instruments so as not to mvest in CAT Bonds having Japanese relevant risk.

The Sub-Investment Manager seeks to diversify the type of perils or the geographical focus
of the CAT Bonds it invests in for the account of the Trust taking into account the tvpe of
perils and’or the geographical focus of overall market of the CAT Bonds, The CAT Bonds to
which the Trust may gain exposure through direct investment are generally unleveraged
structured notes which are issued by special purpose vehicles (“SPYV™). The relevant SPV
assumes the risk of occurrence of defined events and fully funds its exposure to such risks
through the issue of CAT Bonds to collateralize and direetly pass on the risk generated from
entering into risk transfer contracts with a sponsor.
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Notes to financial statements (continued)
3 Financial risk management (continued)
far) Market risk feontinued)

The Investment Manager secks to hedge foreign exchange rate risk for Unitholders by
entering into the following Currency Forwards:

o [In relation to the USD Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units, the Investment Manager
implements a strategy designed to hedge the USD Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units'
exposure to foreign exchange Auctuations between USD {in which the USD Semi-Annual
Dhstribution Class Units are denominated) and currencies other than USD.

+ In relation to the JPY Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units, the Investment Manager
implements a strategy designed to hedge the JPY Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units'
exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations between JPY (in which the JPY Semi-Annual
Distribution Class Units are denominated) and currencies other than JPY.

The Sub-Investment Manager tracks the difference of the CAT Bonds® risk characteristics
against a reference index on a monthly basis. The benchmark index that the Sub-Investment

Manager uses is Swiss Re Global Cat Bond Performance Index Total Retumn,

The Sub-Investment Manager manages the investments of the Trust in accordance with the
imvestment objectives and strategies of the Trust, making sure thal necessary and
economically rational steps are taken to prevent the Trust’s assels from being used or
invested in violation of the imvestment restrictions of the Trust. The Investment MManager
carries out investment management activities in accordance with intemally prepared and
periodically updated investment guidelines. The Manager advises the Trustee of any
investment management decisions or other investment management activities required as a
resull of occurrences or circumstances outside of the ordinary course of business.

i) Price risk
Price risk 1s the risk that the value of the investment will fluctuate as a result of changes
in market prices, whether caused by factors specific to an mdividual investment or its
ssuer or factors affecting all instruments traded in the market.
As the Trust’s investments are carried at fair value with fair value changes recognized in
the statement of comprehensive income, all changes in market conditions will directly

affect the net assets attributable to the holdas of redeemable units and change in net
assets atiributable to the holders of redeemable units.
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The Trust’s investments, which are mainly CAT Bonds, are issued as floating rate
securities, in which the investor receives a set coupon spread over an index (or return on
high-quality collateral, which is typically invested in short<term money market funds).
The index (or collateral retum) resets periodically based on the prevailing short-term
interest rates. CAT Bonds' price iz inversely related to the spread achieved by investors,

which is a function of modelled expected loss and other market factors, such as peril zone,

perceptions of risk. market trends, economic turmeil. ele.

The following table sets out the concentration of debt instruments held by the Trust as at
August 31, 2018,

August 31, 2018
Market value %o Holdings
UsD

Country*

United Kingdom 502138 .91
Ireland 5.246.356 9.48
Bermuda 36,216,069 63,43
Cayman Islands 8.859.809 16.01
Other 4,522.419 8.17
Total 55,346,791 1040000

* The country classification is based on country of incorpaoration,

In general, there is a concentration of specilic catastrophe risks in specific regions such as
hurricanes in the United States, which represents a high portion of the overall risk of
CAT Bonds. Therefore. in the case of occurrence of these events, the price of these CAT

Bonds may significantly decrease and the Trust may significantly incur losses.
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Notes to financial statements (continued)
4 Finanecial risk management (continued)
fa) Market risk feontimued)
il FPrice risk fcontinied)

The Trust’s imvestments are concentraled in the following perils:

August 31,2018

Market value % Holdings

UsD

Peril
Multi-penil 29.(088.158 52.56
Earthquake 12,309,055 2223
Flood 500,988 .91
Pandemic 4,113,050 743
Wind 9,335,540 16.87
Total 55,346,791 100.00

The Trust mainly invests in CAT Bonds in accordance with the investment policy of the
Trust. The risk management framework that the Sub-Investment Manager applics 1o the
Trust consists of three risk monitoring activities, which are (1) Daily monitoring of any
single CAT Bond’s weightage not 1o exceed 10% of the latest net asset value of the Trust;
(2) Daily monitoring of any single bond issuer’s weightage not to exceed 35% of the
latest net asset value of the Trust: and (3) Monthly caleulation of 1% annual Value at
Risk indicator (VaR).

As at Auvgust 31, 2018, the 1% annual VaR of the Trust is USD 21,808 867, which
represents the maximum loss at occurrence probability once every 100 vears,

In recent years, a concentration of sponsors (such as insurance companies and
counterparties of re-insurance contracts) and issuers has developed in the CAT Bond, As
a result of such concentraled exposure, the Trust may incur greater losses than a
diversified fund which invests in a wider range of sectors and issuers as well as a result of
entire or partial losses of the principal of the CAT Bonds due to the occurrence of natural
catasirophes.

No debt instrument and issuer exceeded 10% and 35% respectively of the net assets
attributable to the holders of redeemable units at August 31, 2018,
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Notes to financial statements (continued)

4 Finanecial risk management (continued)
fa) Market risk feontimeed)
(i} Interest rate risk

The Trust’s interest-bearing Financial assets and liabilities expose it to risks associated
with the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates on ils
financial position and cash flows. In general. the interest rate risk of fixed income
securities is higher than floating income securities. Therefore, the value of fixed income
securities will be more subject to decline than that of floating income securities because
of rise of interest rates. As nominal interest rates rise, the value of the Trust is likely to
decrease. A nominal interest rate can be deseribed as the sum of a real interest rate and an
expected inflation rate.

Fixed income securities and floating income securities with longer durations tend to be
maore sensitive to changes in interest rates. usually making them more volatile than
sccuritics with shorler durations.

In general, CAT Bonds are usually issued as floating income securities, which are less
sensitive to changes in interest rales, as the coupon is partially linked to changes in the
interest rate. However, the residual maturitics of the underlying money market
instruments generally cause some minor interest rate risk.

L st fham Afere than - BRderesl
Augus 31, 2015 Lmonih 1 month - § vesr 1.5 veary Swears bearing Totsd
Usp UsD LT UsD UsP USD

Amriy
Finnncizl assets ol fuir

value through prafit

i boeis 13,505 500 41.350.201 - + 0ARD 3523007
Inferest recelvable . . . . 45 588 245 50%
Ofhr aswels % 1015973 101 573
Cash L3S SER ks 1,135 588
Dol wrseds 15,132 088 A1.550.291 SER0EN 27050407
Liabilitées
Financial liakilities 31

fair value iksough

profit aed loss s - = - 0387 20,387
Accrued expenses = = - - 142610 142 610
Total labiliies - - - 183,147 165, 147,20
Tedsll imterent

sensitivily gap 12,152 058 41,250,291 - - A34.571 26,917,220

20

106/202



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Tekio Marime CAT Bond Fund
Financiad staternenis
Awgust 31, 2018

Notes to financial statements (continued)

4

Finanecial risk management (continued)
fa) Mearket risk fcontimeed)
fif) Interest rate risk fcontinied)
Interest rafe sensitivity analysis
The volatility of interest rates movement for the current period is derived from a change
of 25 basis points (*'bps™) in interest rales at the statement of financial position date. This
analysis assumes that all the other variables remain constant.

Effect on net assets of a
change in interest rates

25 bps 25 bps
Increase Decrease
UsD UsD
August 31, 2018
Net impact to net asscts attributable to
unitholders (13,837} 13,837

The duration for the debt instruments held as of August 31, 2018 s 0.1

The Trust’s exposure to cash-flow inlerest rate risk by financial assets and labilitics
comprises primarily of cash, which are held at variable short-term market interest rates.
The impact of changes in market interest rates on these balances is not significant to the
Trust.

(i) Currency risk

The Trust may invest in financial instroments and enter into transactions denominated in
currencics other than its functional currency. Consequently, the Trust is exposed to risks
that the exchange rate of its functional currency relative to other foreign currencies may
change in a manner that has an adverse effcct on the value of that portion of the Trust's
asscts or liabilities denominated in currencies including its funclional currency, US

Dollar.
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Notes to financial statements (continued)
4 Financial risk management (continued)
() Market risk (continued)
(i} Currency risk

The following table sets out the Trusts total exposure to forcign currency nisk in US
Dollar equivalent at August 31, 2018:

JPY ELUR Total
August 31, 3018 USD LISTy USD
Assels
Cash 6,389 - 6389
Financial asseis at fair value through profit and boss . 3,715,593 3,725,593
Interest receivahle . 30,072 30,072
Cther assels 60,087 - [
Total assets 66,471 1,755 665 3822136
Liabilitkes
Accrued expenses . . .
Total Habilitles - - -
Forward forelgn exchange coniracts 24.220,856 (3. 700.358) 20,510,978
Tuotal net exposanre 24287307 45,807 24,313,114

e —

Amounts in the above table are based on the camrving value of assets and liabilities and
the notional value of forward foreign exchange contracts,

Sensitivity analysiz

The net exposure to foreign currency risk of the monetary assets and liabilities at Avgust
31, 2018 was USD 24.333.114. At August 31, 2018, had the US Dollar strengthened by
3% in relation to all currencies, with other variables held constant, net assets attributable
to the holders of redecmable units and change in net assets attributable to the holders of
redeemable units per the statement of comprehensive mecome would have decrcased by
USD 1,216,656, A 5% weakening of the US Dollar against the above currencies would
have resulied in an equal bui opposite effect on the basis that all other variables remain
consiant.

108/202



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Tokio Marime CAT Bond Fund
Financiad staternenis
Awgust 31, 2018

Notes to financial statements (continued)

4 Finanecial risk management (continued)
bl Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty to a fnancial instrument will fail to discharge an
obligation or commitment that it has entered into with the Trust. The canying amounts of
financial assels best represent the maximum credil risk exposure at the statement of financial
position date.

The CAT bonds in which the assets of the Trust are invested may be subject to the risk that
the principal or interest of such instruments may not be paid. Adverse changes in the financial
condition of the ssuer may impair the ability of the issuer to make paymenis of interest and
principal. The mability (or perceived nability) of issuers to make timely payments of interest
and principal may affect the value of securities held for the account of the Trust.

In particular, the price of CAT Bonds may significantly decrease as a resull of a CAT bond
issuer’s defaults or the possibility of its defaults due to the occurrence of natural catastrophes
and the spread of pestilence or exceeding trigger points defined in the bond’s terms,

Credit risk is mitigated by undertaking transactions with an approved broker and other
reputable financial institutions. The Trust's financial assets are also held in custody with
established and approved counterparties. All transactions in listed seeurities are settled/paid
for upon delivery using an approved broker. Payment is made on a purchase once the
securitics have been received by the broker, The trade will fail if either party fails to meet its
obligation. The Trust determines concentration risk in relation to exposure to individoal
counterpariies,

Substantially all of the assets of the Trust are held by the Custodian, Bankruptey or
nsolveney of the Custodian may cause the Trust’s rights with respect to investments and cash
and cash equivalents held by the Custodian to be delayed or limited. The Trust monitors its
risk by monitoring the credit quality and financial positions of the Custodian,
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Notes to financial statements (continued)
4  Financial risk management (continued)
(b} Creedit visk feontinued)

The table below summarises the Moody's credit rating of banks and custodians in which the
Trust’s assets are held as at August 31, 2018,

August 31, 2018

Fair value Credit rating
UsD

Bank

The Bank of Mew York Mellon 1,135,588 Al

Custodian

The Bank of New York Mellon 55,346,791 Al

o . - ) —

The Bank of New York Mellon S0.480 Al

(el Licueidity risk

Investment of the Trust’s assets in relatively illiquid securitics may resiriet the ability of the
Manager to dispose of the Trust's investments at a price and time that it wishes to do so.
Furthermore, resale of such invesiments may at times be limited by contractual provisions,
which may itself have an impact on the value of such investments. It is also possible that an
exchange may suspend trading in a particular instrument or contract. order immediate
liquidation and setilement of a particular instrument or contract or order that trading in a
particular instrument or contract be conducted for higuidation only, The rsk of illiguidity also
aris¢s in the case of over-the-counter transactions. There may be no regulated market in such
mstruments or contracts, and the bid and offer prices will likely be established solely by
dealers in these instruments or contracts, Investment i non-marketable securilies carries
liquidity risk. In addition, such securitics are difficult to value, and the issuers of such
securities are not always subject to the rules of a regulated market for the protection of
nvestors,

In general CAT Bonds have low liguidity and limited market participants and the market
price of CAT Bonds in the secondary market may be highly volatile. Therefore, the sale
prices of CAT Bonds may be significantly discounted to the preceding prices of these CAT
Bonds. Furthermore. some CAT Bonds may not have a secondary market and it mav be
necessary to find buyers for these CAT Bonds in over-the-counter transactions. In such case,
the sale prices of CAT Bonds may be significantly discounted the preceding prices of these
CAT Bonds and, as a result, the Trust may significantly incur losses.
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Notes to financial statements (continued)
4 Financial risk management (continued)

ol Licuidity risk (continued)

Furthermore, in case the Trust receives substantial subscriptions in a short period of time and
cannot identify sufficient CAT Bonds to invest in while complying with the investment
restrictions, the Trust may be required to temporarily hold substantial amount of cash. As a
resull. the Unitholders exposure to CAT Bonds will be diluted.

In addition, the Trust may suspend and'or cancel the repurchase and’'or subscription of units
of any class of units in significant circumstances such as the occurrence of significantly
catastrophes to be in the best interests of Unitholders,

Financial liabilitics other than net assets atinbutable to holders of redeemable units have
residual contractual maturities of less than three months,

il Other risks
Volatility risk

The prices of derivative instruments are highly volatile. Price movements of forward
contracts. are influenced by, among other things. iterest rates, changing supply and demand
relationships, trade, fiscal, monetary and exchange control programmes and policies of
governments, and national and international political and economic events and policies.

In addition, govemnments from time to time intervene, directly and by regulation, in certain
markets, particularly markets in currencies and interest rate related futures and options.  Such
intervention often is intended directly to influcnce prices and may, together with other factors,
cause all of such markets to move rapidly in the same direction because of, among other
things, interest rate flucluations,

Technicues and instruments risk

The use of techniques and instruments also mvolves certain special risks, including (i)
dependence on the ability to predict movements in the prices of investments being hedged
and movements in interest rates. (i) imperfect correlation between the hedging instruments
and the investments or market sectors being hedged, (i) the fact that skills needed to use

these mstruments are different from those needed to sclect investments, and {(iv) possible
impediments to effective portfolic management or the ability lo meet repurchase requests,

Early termingtion af the Trust

Although the final repurchase day of the Trust 15 scheduled for December 1. 2163, the final
repurchase day will be brought forward should a Compulsory Repurchase Event oceur,
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Notes to financial statements (continued)

4 Finanecial risk management (continued)
(d} Qther risks {continued)
Early termination of the Trust (contimied)

Unless the Trust is terminated in accordance with the provisions described in the offering
documents, the unils will be compulsorily repurchased upon the first to occur of any of the
following:

(1) The net asset value on any valuation day on or after 1 July 2022 is USS10.000.000 or less,
and the Manager determines that all units should be compulsorily repurchased: or

{11) The Trustee and the Manager agrecing that all of the units should be compulsonty
repurchased. (each a Compulsory Repurchase Event™)

th

Fair value measurements

The Trust classifies fair value measurement using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the
significance of the inpuls used in making the measurement. The fair value hierarchy has the
following levels:

+ Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1),

s [nputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, cither directly (as prices) or indirectly {derived from prices) (Level 2).

s Inputs for the asset or lability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable
mputs) { Level 3).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorized i its
entirety is determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement in its entirety. For this purpose, the significance of an input 15 assessed against the
fair value measurement in its entirety. If a fair value measurement uses observable inputs that
require significant adjustment based on unobservable inputs, that measurement is a Level 3
measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its
entirety requires judgment, considering factors specific to the asset or liability,

The determination of what constitutes “observable’ requires significant judgment by the Trust.
The Trust considers observable data to be market data that is readily available, regularly
distributed or updated. reliable and verifiable, not proprictary, and provided by independent
sources that are actively imvolved in the relevant market,
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Notes to financial statements (continued)
5 Fair value measurements (continued )
Financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss

The table below analyzes the financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss at
August 31, 2018 by the level in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is

categorized:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
August 31, 2018 UshD Usp UsD usp
Finaneial asset ar_jl".::r:'.«-'.'.u!ue
thratgh profit or loss
Investment in debt instruments = 55,346,791 - 35,346,701
Investment in currency forwards - 50,480 - 503,480
- 55,397,271 - 55,397,271
Financial liabilities at fair value
thrangh profit or loss
Investment in currency forwards = {20,557 = (20,557)
- {20,557) - (20,557

Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active but are valued
based on quoled market prices, dealer quotations or aliernative pricing sources supported by
abservable inputs are classified within level 2. These include investment in CAT Bonds and
currency forwards,

The investment in CAT Bonds is valued in accordance with the policies described in Note
3(a)iv), The price of the CAT Bonds is derived from the 4 brokers” bid and asks prices. These
brokers are main market makers of CAT Bonds market, and they calculate their prices based on
CAT Bonds transaction prices thal are available and open to the public, using their own pricing
model. If there is no transaction available, the brokers caleulate the bond price from the market
data of similar bond. There is sufficient information available to measure fair values of the bonds
based on observable market inputs. However, it is possible that the estimated values may differ
significantly from the amount that might ultimately be realized in the near term and the difference
could be material,

27
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Notes to financial statements (continued)

5

Fair value measurements (continued)
Financial instruments not measured at fair valwe through profit or loss
The financial instruments not measured at fair value through profit or loss include:

(1) Cash, interest receivable, other assels and accrued expenses. These are shori-term
financial assets and financial liabilitics whose carrying amounts approximate fair value,
because of their short-term nature,

(i) Net assels attributable to the holder of redeemable units. The Trust routinely repurchases
and issues the redeemable umts at the amount equal to the proportionate share of net
assets of the Trust at the time of repurchase, caleulated on a basis consistent with that
used in these financial statements. Accordingly, the carrying amount of net assets
attributable to the holder of redeemable units approximates their fair value.

Derivative financial instrioments

The Trust enters into currency forward contracts, A currency forward contract 15 an agreement
between two parties to buy or sell a currency at a specified price. at a specified quantity and on a
specified future date. At inceplion. there 15 no exchange of principal amounts and the net
receivable or payable position is settled on maturity. Currency forwards are used to control and
hedge foreign exchange risk attributable to JPY Semi-Annual Distribution Class and USD Semi-
Annual Distribution Class.

The following currency forward contracts were outstanding at the reporting date:

August 31, 2018

No. of Receivable Pavable Fair Value (net)
Maturity date contracts UsD UsD UsDh
September 14, 2013 2 50,480 (20,357) 29923
Total 50,480 (20,357) 29,923

28
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Notes to financial statements (continued)
5 Fair value measurements (continued)

Derivative financial nstraments (continuned)

The currencics purchased and sold in the currency forward contracts included: United States
Dollar, Euro and Japanese Yen, which are in line with the investment objective of the Trust.

The following table sets out the notional exposures on the curreney forward contracts.

August 31, 2018 Fair valoe Notional value
UsD VS

Derivative assets

Curreney forward contracts 20,480 24,170,358

Derivative liabilities
Cumency forward contracts {20,557} (3,689, 301)

Offsetting financial assets and financial Labilities

The Trust discloses the impact of offsetling assels and Liabilities represented in the balance sheet
to enable users of the financial statement to evaluate the effect or potential effect of netting
arrangements on its financial position for recognized assets and liabilities. These recognized
assets and liabilities are financial instruments and derivative instruments that are either subject to
an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement or meet the following right of
setofl criteria: the amounts owed by the Trust to another party are determinable, the Trust has the
right to set off the amounts owed with the amounts owed by the other party, the Trust intends (o
set off, and the Trust’s right of setoff is enforceable at law.

As of August 31, 2018, the Trust holds financial instroments and derivative instruments that are
eligible for offset in the statement of financial position and are subject to a master netting
arrangement, The master netting arrangement allows the counterparty to net any collateral held on
behalf of the Trust or liabilities or payment obligation of the counterpariy against any liabilities or
payment obligations of Trust to the counterparty.
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Notes to financial statements (continued)

5 Fair value measurements (continued)

(Offsetting financial assets and financial Gabilities (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities subject to enforceable master netting arrangements and similar
agreements as at August 31, 2018 are as follow:

Gross amounts of
recogid zed financial
assets presented In
the statement of

Related amounis not offsel In the statement
of Mnancial positdon

Finanelal Crash onllateral

i'hf:ﬂﬂﬂ' position instruments(a) received(a) Pk momoent
Derlvative assels
Currency forward
contracis
The Bank of Mew
York Mellon S0.480 (20,557} - 289923
Tl 50,480 (20 557) - 29923

Gross amounts of Related amounis not offsel in the siatement

zed financial of Miancial position

liabilities presented

In the statement of Financlal Cash collateral .

gr;mrhl positian Instrumentsa) pledgedia) et amount
Derlvative labiligies
Currency forward
conlracis
The Bank of New
York Mellon {10,557 20,557
Todal (20,33 7) 20,557

21 These amounts are limited to the derivative asset or labilities balances and
accordingly do not include any excess collateral received or pledged.

) These amounts presented in the statement of financial position are not netted off and
consequently the gross value equals the net value.
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6  Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Debt instruments
Currency forwards

August 31, 2018
UsD

55,346,791
S0.480

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

55,397,271

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Currency forwards

20,557

Total financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

20,557

7 Net gain on investments

Met gain on investments consists of the following:

For the period August 15, 2017 (date of
establishment) to August 31, 2018

et realized gain on debt instruments

Change in unrealized loss on debts instruments
Wet realized loss on currency forwards

Change in unrealized gain on currency forwards

USD

4,002
(1.373.897)
(12,988)
20923

Net loss on investments

(1,352,870)

8  Nef assets atiributable to the holder of redeemable units
The movements in the number of units issued and fully paid are as follows:
Issued and fully paid

JPY Semi-Annual
Distribution Class

USID) Semi-Annual
Distribution Class

{units) (units)
Balance at August 15, 2017 {date of
establishment) - -
Issue of units 284478038 3.287.246.637
Repurchase of uniis (1 1.000,024) -
Balance at August 31, 2018 273, 478.014 3,287.246.637
3l

117/202



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Tokio Marime CAT Bond Fund
Financiad staternenis
Awgust 31, 2018

Notes to financial statements (continued)
] Net assets attributable to the holder of redeemable units {continued)

In respect of the USD Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units for the initial offer period. the
minimum initial subscription is 10,000 units and thereafter in further one unit increments. For
subsequent subscriptions the minimum initial subseription is USS100,000 and thereafler i further
USS0.01 increments,

In respect of the JPY Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units for the initial offer period, the
minimum initial subseription is 1,000 units and thereafier in further one unit increments. For
subsequent subscriptions the minimum initial subscription is JPY 10,000,000 and thereafler in
further JPY'1 increments.

The issue price is USS10.00 per unit in respect of USD Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units and
JPY 10,000 per unit in respect of the JPY Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units

After the imitial issue of units, an eligible investor may subscribe for units on any subsequent
subscription day at the relevant subscription price. The subscription price shall be, in respeet of
cach unit purchased of a class of units on any dealing day, an amount equal to the net asset value
per unit of such class of units as at the valuation point on the valuation day immediately

preceding such dealing day,

Investors wishing fo submit units of a class of units for repurchase on a repurchase day must
submit a repurchase notice to the Administrator by no later than 6,00 p.m. (Tokyo time) on the
repurchase notice day which immediately precedes such repurchase day or such other tune or
times on such day or days as the Manager may, in its sole discretion, determine.

A repurchasc day shall be the third business day of cach month on which no Trust termination
disruption event ocours and/or such other day or days as the Manager may from time to time
determine in respect of the Trust or a class of units,

The repurchase notice day shall be the 10th calendar day of each month, or, if such day is not a
business day, the immediately following business day, or such other date or dates as the Manager
may determine.

Unitholders will be able to receive an amount in respect of each unit of a class of units
repurchased on anv repurchase day prior to the final repurchase day equal to the net asset value
per unit of such class of units calculated as at the valvation point on the valuation day
immediately preceding such repurchase day as may be adjusted pursvant to the swing pricing
adjustment,

In the event that repurchase notices representing 10%% or more of all issued units of a class of
units have been received or the Manager and Trustee determine that the liquidation of the
mvestments of the Trust would not be practicable or would be prejudicial to unitholders. the
Manager. in consultation with the Trustee, may elect to postpone a unitholder’s repurchase. in
whole or in part, in such manner as the Manager may determine.
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Notes to financial statements (continued)

8  Net assets attributable to the holder of redeemable units (continued)

Distributions

The Manager may, following consultation with the Investment Manager. determine that
distributions be pavable in respect of cach class of units on a semi-annual basis on each
distribution declaration date, taking into account factors including but not limited to the net
investment income, net realized and unrealized capital gains and capital attributable to the
relevant class of units and received during the relevant distribution period.

Distributions will be made to those persons shown as the registered holders of units on the
distribution record day immediately preceding such distribution declaration date. The Manager
may. following consultation with the Investment Manager, where it deems appropriate, elect that
a distribution be paid in whole or in part out of investment principal attributable to the units (and
which may also be in excess of any capital gain) over a distribution period, where it deems that
the amount of net investment income, net realized and unrealized capital gains and capital
attributable to the relevant class of units received during the relevant distribution period 1o be
insufficient of ilself to fund that semi-annual distribution. The Manager may also elect that a
semi-annual distribution is not payable in respect of units for a relevant distribution period,
notwithstanding its option to use the investment principal attributable to the units. Circumslances
where the Manager may make such an election. include but are not limited to where it determines
in its sole discretion that application of the Trust's investment objectives and policies have
generated a negative performance over the previous six months or have underperformed to the
extent that the Manager deems, following consultation with the Investment Manager, it
appropriaie to make such an election,

Upon the termination of the Trust, the Trustee will distribute to the existing unitholders in
proportion o the units held by them, all cash proceeds derived from the realization of the assets
of the Trust, The Trustee may retain the necessary cash proceeds for provision for all costs, debis,
liabilities, charges, expenses, claims and demands properly incurred or made by the Trustee and
whether or not incurred or made in connection with or arising out of the termination,

During the period August 15, 2017 {date of establishment) to August 31, 2018, there were no
distributions to the holders of redeemable units.,

9 Related party transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions,

Credit Suisse International acts in capacily as Fee Agent of the Trust, and represents a related
party by virtue of its ability to exercise significant influence by virtue of common ownership by
their ultimate parent company, Credit Suisse Group AG. The Fee Agent is entitled to receive a
Fee Asent fee of 0.12% per annum of the nel asset value accrued on a daily basis and calculated
as at each valuation day out of the assets of the Trust. Total Fee Agent fee for the period
amounted to USS57,153 with US511,554 outstanding accrued fees payable to the Fee Agent at
the end of the period.

Lad
fad
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Notes to financial statements (continued)
9  Related party transactions {continued)

The Manager is a related party by virtue of its power to issue units under the Trust Deed and by
virtue of common ownership by the ultimate parent company. Credit Suisse Group AG. The
Manager 15 entitled to receive out of the Fee agent fee a management fee of USD 5,000 per annum
payable monthly in arrears. paid by the Fee Agent.

The Investment Manager is a related party by virtue of ifs responsibility for the discretionary day-
to-day investment decision-making responsibility over the Sub-Advised Portfolio and the
management of the Currency Forwards; which is delegated by the Manager by the terms of the
Investment Management Agreement. The Investment Manager is entitled to receive a fee of
0.70% per annum of the net assel value accrued on a daily basis, caleulated as at each valuation
day and pavable quarterly in arrears out of the assets of the Trust. Total Investment Manager fee
for the period amounted to US5333,624 with USS67,400 outstanding accrued fees payable to the
Investment Manager at the end of the period.

The Sub-lnvestment Manager is a related party by virtue of its responsibility for the day-to-day
investment decision-making over the Sub-Advised Portfolio; which is further delegated by the
Investment Manager by the terms of the Sub-Investment Management Agreement. The Sub-
Investment Manager is entitled to receive a fee of 0.50% per annum of the net asset value accrued
on a daily basis, calculated on each valuation day and paid by the Investment Manager oul of the
investment manager fees. Total Sub-Investment Manager fee for the period amounied to
USS238,303 with UUS548, 143 outstanding accrued fees payable to the Sub-Investment Manager ai
the end of the period,

The Trustee is a related party by virtue its affiliation with the Trust due to is possession of
complete authority over the operations and management of the Trust. The Trustee is entitled to
receive a fixed annual fee of USDO,000 per annum pavable annually in advance out of the assets
of the Trust. The Trustee is also reimbursed out of the assets of the Trust for all out-of-pocket
expenses properly incurred by it in the performance of its duties,

10 Subsequent events

Subsequent to August 31, 2018, and as at December 20, 2018, the Trust has recorded
subscriptions of USS793,271, repurchases of US$6,483.920 and distributions of TS5212,037.

In preparing these financial statements, management has evaluated and disclosed all material
subsequent events up to December 20, 2018, which is the date that the financial statements were
available for issue.
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2018 12
78,070,066.56 8,665,777,388
27,088,819.86 3,006,859,004
50,981,246.70 5,658,918,384

248,450.770

2,932,114.853

9,658

9.93 1,102
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2018 12 735,000 8,159

10
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2018 12

263,800,229
16,351,882
3,688,985,187
35 468,106,428,961
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2016
21,090 195,000 21,645
1,253 6,342 704
(12,424) (113,983) (12,652)
9,919 87,359 9,697
9,919 87,359 9,697
9,919 87,359 9,697
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2017 12 31

2017 2016
10 1,016,181 112,796 748,103 83,039
11 190,000 21,090 373,114 41,416
12 1,000 111
107,591 11,943 100,343 11,138
1,313,772 145,829 1,222,560 135,704
3,742 415 1,886 209
3,742 415 1,886 209
1,310,030 145,413 1,220,674 135,495
13 735,000 81,585 735,000 81,585
575,030 63,828 485,674 53,910
1,310,030 145,413 1,220,674 135,495

2018 19
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2017 12 31

2016 735,000 81,585 398,315 44,213 1,133,315 125,798
87,359 9,697 87,359 9,697

2016 12 31

2017 735,000 81,585 485,674 53,910 1,220,674 135,495
89,356 9,919 89,356 9,919

2017 12 31 735,000 81,585 575,030 63,828 1,310,030 145,413
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2017 2016
89,356 9,919 87,359 9,697
(11,287) (1,253) (6,342) (704)
78,069 8,666 81,017 8,993
183,114 20,326 (193,114) (21,436)

1,000 111

(7,248) (805) (9,795) (1,087)
1,856 206 (1,259) (140)
256,791 28,504 (123,151) (13,670)
11,287 1,253 6,342 704
11,287 1,253 6,342 704
268,078 29,757 (116,809) (12,966)
748,103 83,039 864,912 96,005
10 1,016,181 112,796 748,103 83,039
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KY1-1104
309 c/o Maples Corporate Services
Limited, P.0. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman KY1-1104, Cayman Islands

IFRS
IFRS IAS
1ASB

IFRS
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1ASB IFRS
2017 2016
$ $
190,000 195,000
2017 2016
$ $
11,287 6,342
2017 2016
$ $

105,033 107,918
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2017 2016
$ $
3,142 3,079
3,756 2,986
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10
2017 2016

$ $

1,016,181 748,103
11
12
13

2017 2016
$ $
1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

12 31 735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000
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2018
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Credd Svisse Managament (Caymman) Linilod
Fmancial statemants for the year ended 31 December 2017

Statement of comprehensive income

for the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in United States dollars)

Mote 2017 2016

$ 5

Revenue 4 190,000 195,000
Other revenue 5 11,287 6,342
Other operating expenses - (mn 931} {113,983)
Profit from operations 89,356 87,359
Finance costs " -
Profit before taxation 7 89,356 87,358
Taxation 8 - -

Profit and total comprehensive income

for the year ) EQ.S_EE_S 87,359

The notes on pages 8 to 19 form part of these financial statements.
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Credif Swisse Managemen! {Cayman) Limiled
Financial stafemeants for tha year ended 31 Decembar 2017

Statement of financial position at 31 December 2017
(Expressed in United States dollars)

Note 2017 2016
5 3
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 10 1,016,181 748 103
Amaounts due from fellow subsidiaries 11 190,000 373,114
Amounts due from immediate holding
company 12 - 1,000
Sundry debtors, deposit and other asseis 107,591 100,343
Total current assets 1,313,772 1,222,560
Current liabilities
Other liabilities 3,742 1,886
Total current liabilities 3,742 1,686
Net assets 1 ,:'i'_l_i_ll:DSU _1 _,220.3?4
Capital and reserves
Share capital 13 735,000 735,000
Retained profits 575,030 485,674
Total equity 1,310,030 1,220,674
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on JUL 19 2018
) N ]
)\;\ o \1»’- = )
E AT ol ) Director
Brian Burkholder :

The notes on pages 8 to 19 form part of these financial statements.
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Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limied
Finarncial stalemants for the year ended 31 December 2017

Statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in United States dollars)

Share Refained
capital profits Total
5 3 3
At 1 January 2016 735,000 398,315 1,133,315
Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year - B?,SE-Q_ B?,EE?
At 31 December 2016 and
1 January 2017 735,000 485,674 1,220,674
Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year - 89,356 89,356
At 31 December 2017 735,000 575,030 1,31 ﬂ,ﬂﬁﬂ_

The notes on pages 8 to 19 form part of these financial statements.
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Credif Swisse Management (Cayman) Limited
Financial slatements for the year ended 31 Décamber 2017

for the year ended 31 December 2017

(Expressed in United States dollars)

Operating activities
Profit before taxation

Adjustment for:
Interest income

Operating profit before changes in working
capital

Decreasef(increase) in amounts due from
fellow subsidiaries

Decrease in amounts due from immediate
holding company

Increase in sundry debtors, deposits and other
assets

Increasel(decrease) in other liabilities

Cash generated from/{used in) operating
activities

Investing activities
Interast received

Cash generated from investing activities

Net increasel{decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

Note 2017 2016
$ $

89,356 87,359

(11,287) (6,342)

78,069 81,017

183,114 (193,114)

1,000 -

(7,248) (9,795)

1,856 (1,259)

256,791 {123,151)

11,287 6,342

11,287 6,342

268,078 (116,809)

748,103 864 912

10 1,016,181 748,103

The notes on pages 8 to 19 form part of these financial statements,
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Credit Suisse Managemen! (Cayman) Limited
Financial stalerrenis for the year ended 31 December 2017

Notes to the financial statements
(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Principal activities and registered office

Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (the "Company”) is incorporated in the
Cayman Islands with limited liability. The Company's principal activities are the creation
of trusts and the administration and management of assets in the trusts. The Company's
registerad office is c/o Maples Corporate Services Limited, P.O. Box 309, Ugland House,
Grand Cayman KY 1-1104, Cayman Islands,

Significant accounting policies
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs"), which collective term includes all
applicable individual International Financial Reporting Standards, International
Accounting Standards ("IASs") and Interpretations issued by International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB"). Significant accounting policies adopted by the Company is
set out below,

Basis of preparation of the financial statemenis

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the
historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial staterments in conformity with IFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies
and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on histarical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form
the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates,

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Translation of forgign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into United States Dollars at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into United States Dollars at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting peried. Exchange gains and
losses are recognised in the profit or loss.
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Credit Swisse Management (Cayman) Limiled
Einancial staterments for the year ended 31 Decamber 2017

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Mon-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated into United States Dollars using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates the fair value was measured. Foreign currency differences
arising on retranslation are recognised in profit or loss,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Company's cash management are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the cash flow statement.

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debis (see note 2(g)), except
where the recaivables are interest-free loans made to related parties without any fixed
repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the
receivables are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts,

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Company
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
mare future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Impairment

The earrying amount of the Company's assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment, If any such
evidence exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated at the end of each
reporting period. An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying amount
of an asset exceads its recoverable amount.
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Cread Suisse Management (Cayman) Limied
Fmancial slatamenis for the year endad 31 December 2017

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.
Provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Campany and the
revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, management fee income is
recognised in profit or loss when the investment management service is provided.

Expenses
All expenses are recognised in profit and loss on an accrual basis.
Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered to be related to the
Company if:

{a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the Company if
that person:

{i)  has control or joint control over the Company,
(il has significant influence owver the Company; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Company or the
Company's parent.

{b) An entity is related to the Company if any of the following conditions applies:

{iy ~ The entity and the Company are members of the same group (which means
that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate
or joint venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(ivi One entity is a joint venture of a third parly and the other entity is an
associate of the third party.

(v} The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Company or an entity related to the Company.

{(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the
entity).

{viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the Company or to the Company’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be
expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

10
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Financial statemeants for the year ended 31 Dacarmber 2017

Changes in accounting policies

The IASE has issued several amendments to IFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Company. Mone of these developments have had a material
effect an how the Company's results and financial position for the current or prior periods
have been prepared or presented.

The Company has not applied any new standard ar interpretation that is not yet effective
for the current accounting period.

Revenue

The principal activities of the Company are the creafion of trusts and the administration
and management of assefs in trusts.

Revenue represents investment management fee income earned from fellow
subsidiaries as follows:

2017 2016
3 $
Investment management fee income eamed
from fellow subsidiaries 190,00_@ 195,000
Other revenue
2017 2016
] $
Interest income 11,287 6,342
Directors' emoluments
2017 2016
$ $
Directors’ fees 105,033 107,918

11
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Credif Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited
Financial stataments for the year ended 31 December 2017

Profit before taxation

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

2017 2016

5 £

Auditors' remuneration 3,142 3,079
Administration expenses 3,756 2,986

All of the above expenditures are payable to the Company's immediate holding company
and the immediate holding company settles such expenditures on behalf of the
Company.

Taxation

There are no taxes on income or gains in the Cayman Islands and the Company has
received an undertaking from the Govemnor in Council of the Cayman Islands exempting
it from all local income, profits and capital taxes until 18 January 2020. Accordingly, no
provision for income taxes is included in these financial statements.

Unconsolidated structured entities
Sponsored unconsolidated structured entities

The Company considers itself the sponsor of a structured entity when either its name
appears in the name of the structured entity or in products issued by it or there is a
general expectation from the market that the Company is associated with the structured
entity or the Company was involved in the design or set up of the structured entity and
has a form of involvement with the structured entity. For unconsolidated structured
entities that were sponsored by the Company but no interest was held, the Company did
not receive investment management fees from these entities during the reporting period
and no assets were transferred to these entities.

The below unconsolidated struciured entities are sponsored by the Company where no
management fee is received and no interest is held by the Company as at 31 December

2017:

= HOLT® Japan Income Plus Strategy Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors
Only)

12
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Cradit Swisse Manegemeni (Cayman) Limited
Financial statamants for he year ended 27 December 2017

Unconsolidated structured entities (continued)

The below unconsolidated structured entities are sponsored by the Company where a
fixed annual management fee of USD 5,000 (2016: USD 5,000} is received but no
interest is held by the Company as at 31 December 2017:

Global Futures Selection Fund (Principal Protected on Maturity in AUD)
Asia Equity Income Plus Strategy Fund (For Gualified Institutional Investors Only)
Global REIT Alpha Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

Australian High Dividend Equity Twin Alpha Fund {For Qualified Institutional
Investors Only)

US REIT Premium Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

Daiwa Australian High Dividend Equity Alpha Fund (For Qualified Institutional
Investors Only)

Brazilian High Dividend Equity Premium Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors
Only)

Principal f CS Canadian Equity Income Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors
Only)

CS Global REIT Triple Premium Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investars Only)
S High Dividend Equity Premium Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
US Small Cap Equity Premium Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

Daiwa Emerging Local Market Bond Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors
Only)

J-REIT Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

US Preferred REIT Income Fund (For Clualified Institutional Investors Only)
Japan Equity Premium Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

Euro Stock Premium Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
NE/MYAM US REIT Income Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
Daiwa UK High Dividend Equity Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
AMP Australia Income Bond Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

Brazil Equity Alpha Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

13
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Cradif Suisse Managemeani (Cayman) Limited
Firancial statemants for the year anded 31 Decembar 2017

Unconsolidated structured entities (continued)

- Daiwa Brazilian Real Bond Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

s US Value Equity Concentrated Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
- Nissay Japan Equity Active Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

- AMP Australia REIT Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

- J-REIT and Real Estate Equity Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only}
= Shinsei European Bond Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

- Daiwa American High Dividend Equity Quattro Income Fund (For Qualified
Institutional Investors Only)

- Daiwa American REIT Quattro Income Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors
Only)

- US REIT Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

- Shinsei World Wrap Fund Stable Type (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
- Shinsei World Wrap Fund Growth Type (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
—  US REIT Triple Engine Plus Fund (For Qualified institutional Investors Only)

- Japanese Government Bond 17-20 Year Ladder Fund (For Qualified Institutional
Investors Only)

- Australia REIT Fund

- Australia REIT Plus Fund

- US Treasury 5-7 Year Ladder Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
- US Municipal Bond Fund

-  Tokio Marine CAT Bond Fund

The Company has not provided financial or other support to consolidated structured
entities that it was not contractually required to provide.

The Company does not currently have the intention to provide financial or other support
to unconsolidated structured entities that it is not contractually required to provide.

14
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Crendd]l Suisse Managemend (Cayman) Limited
Financial slatements for the pedr ended 31 December 2017

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalenis comprise:

2017 2018
5 $
Deposit with bank (interest-bearing) 1,016,181 748,103

Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries

Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed
terms of repayment.

Amounts due from immediate holding company

Amounts due from immediate holding company are unsecured, interest-free and have no
fixed terms of repayment.

Share capital

Authorised and issued share capital

2017 2016
No. of No. of
shares Armount shares Amount
5 §
Authorised:
Ordinary shares of $1
each 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid:
At 1 January and
31 December 735,000 735,000 735,000 735 000

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to
time and are entitled to one vote per share at general meetings of the Company. All
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company's residual assets,

15
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Crod Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited
Financial statamants for the year ended 31 Decarnber 2017

Share capital (continued)
Capital management

The Company's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders, by pricing services commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost. As the Company is part of a larger
group, the Company's sources of additional capital and policies for distribution of excess
capital may also be affected by the group's capital management objectives. The
Company defines “capital” as including all compenents of equity.

The Company's capital structure is regularly reviewed and managed with due regard to
the capital management practices of the group to which the Company belongs.
Adjustments are made to the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions
affecting the Company or the group, to the extent that these do not conflict with the
directors’ fiduciary duties towards the Company.

The Company was not subject to extemally imposed capital requirements in the current
period.

Financial risk management and fair values

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in the normal course
of the Company’s business, These risks are managed by the Company’s financial
management policies and practices described below.

Credit risk

The Company's credit risk is primarily attributable to amounts due from group companies
and cash at bank. Credit risk is defined as risk that one party to a financial instrument
will cause a financial loss to another party by failing to discharge an obligation.
Management regularly monitors its risk exposure to ensure that its credit risk is kept to a
minimal level. The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset in the statement of financial position after deducting any
impairment allowance,

Liquidity risk

The Company's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements to satisfy its
contractual and reasonably foreseeable obligations as they fall due,

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, all of the Company's financial liabilities, which includes
all creditors and accruals, are on demand or undated and are expected to be settled
within three months.
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Credd Susse Managarnant (Cayman) Limited
Financial slatements for the year ended 31 December 2017

Financial risk management and fair values (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk only to the extent that it eams bank interast
on cash and deposits. At 31 December 2017 and 2016, a change in interest rates would

have no direct material effect on the camying value of the recognised assets or liabilities
of the Company.

Foreign currency risk

The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through certain transactions
which give rise to payables that are denominated in Hong Kong dollars ("HKD").

As the HKD is pegged to the United States dollar ("USD"), the Company considers that
the risk of movements in exchange rates between the USD and the HKD to be
insignificant.

Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Company's financial instruments carried at cost or
amortised cost are not materially different from their fair value as at 31 December 2017.

Material related party transactions

Except as disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Company did not enter
any material related party transactions.

Parent and ultimate holding company

At 31 December 2017, the immediate parent of the Company is Credit Suisse (Hong
Kong) Limited, which is incorporated in Hong Kong and the ultimate controlling party of
the Company is Credit Suisse Group AG, which is incorporated in Switzerland. Credit
Suisse Group AG produces financial statements available for public use.
Non-adjusting events after the reporting period

The below table shows the unconsolidated structured entities that were sponsored or
terminated by the Company after the reporting period.

Sponsored or
Name of unconsolidated structured entities terminated in 2018 Effective date
Global Futures Selection Fund Terminated 29 March 2018
{Principal Protected on Maturity in AUD)
Downside Control Equity Fund Sponsored 1 June 2018

(For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
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Cradit Swisse Managemen! {Cayman) Limied
Einancial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017

Possible impact of amendments, new standards and interpretations issued
but not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2017

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASE has issued a number of
amendments, new standards and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2017 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These include the following which may be relevant to the Company:

Effective for

accounting periods

beginning on or after

IFRS 8, Financial instruments 1 January 2018
IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018

The Company is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these
amendments, new standards and interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far the Company has identified some aspects of the new standards
which may have a significant impact on the financial statements. Further details of the
expected impacts are discussed below. While the assessment has been substantially
completed for IFRS 15, the actual impacts upon the initial adoption of the standards may
differ as the assessment completed to date is based on the information currently
available to the Company, and further impacts may be identified before the standards
are initially applied in the Company's financial report for the year ended 31 December
2018. The Company may also change its accounting policy elections, including the
transition options, until the standards are initially applied in that financial report.
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Credif Swizze Managamen! (Cayman) Limiod
Financial slatements for the year ended 31 December 2017

Possible impact of amendments, new standards and interpretations issued
but not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers:

|ASBE issued IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers ("IFRS 157). IFRS 15
establishes a single, comprehensive framework for revenue recognition. The core
principle of IFRS 15 requires that an entily recognise revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the entity expects to be entitied in exchange for those goods or services. IFRS 15
also includes disclosure requirements that enable users of financial statements to
understand the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising
from contracts with customers.

IFR:3 15 and Clarifications to IFRS 15 are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

The Company's implementation efforts includes the identification of revenue and costs
within the scope of the guidance, as well as the evaluation of revenue contracts under
the new guidance and related accounting policies. The guidance does not apply to
revenue associated with financial instruments, including loans and securities that are
accounted for under other IFRSs.

The Company adopted the guidance in IFRS 15 and Clarifications to IFRS 15 on 1
January 2018 using the cumulative effect transition approach with a transition
adjustment recognised in retained eamings without restating comparatives. As a result
of adoption, there was no material impact on the retained eamings (net of tax).
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Elian Trustee Cayman Limited

2018 12 100
11,100
The Bank of New York Mellon
2018 11 3,500
1,259 8,500
2017 30 6,000
7,300
2018 12 80
Credit Suisse International
2016 12 123 6,600
13,726
1990
1985 2500199
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2000 27
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1985 12
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2017 7,909
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Cayman Idlands
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Internet www.kpmg.ky

Independent Auditors' Report to the Trustee
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Tokio Marine CAT Bond Fund (the “ Series Trust”), a series trust of Credit
Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) Ill, which comprise the statement of financial position as at August 31, 2018, the
statements of comprehensive income, changes in net assets attributable to the holder of redeemable units and cash flows
for the period from August 15, 2017 (date of establishment) to August 31, 2018, and notes, comprising significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Series Trust as at August 31, 2018, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the period from August 15, 2017
(date of establishment) to August 31, 2018 in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”").

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAS"). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the "Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements" section
of our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”) together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with |
FRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Series Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic

alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust's financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditors' Report to the Trustee (continued)

Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Satements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

| dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Series
Trust's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Series Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements

or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Series Trust to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financia statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

KPMG

December 20, 2018
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Independent auditor’ s report to the board of directors of
Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the financia statements of Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (the “Company™”) set out on
pages 4 to 19, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes
to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31
December 2017 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standard (“1FRS’).

Basisfor opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“1SAS’). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code") together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Cayman Islands and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Information other than the financial statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises al the information included in
the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge

obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent auditor's report to the board of directors of
Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (continued)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Responsibilities of the directors for the financia statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRS and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assuranceis a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Company’s interna control.
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Independent auditor's report to the board of directors of
Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (continued)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a

going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciesin internal control that we identify during our audit.

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince' s Building

10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong
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Independent auditor’ s report to the board of directors of
Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the financia statements of Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (the “Company”) set out on
pages 4 to 18, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, the statement of
comprehensive income and the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flow and notes to the financial

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31
December 2016 and of its financia performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standard (“1FRS”).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“1SAS’). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”) together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.
Information other than the financial statements and auditor’ s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises al the information included in

the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge

obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we

are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

200/202



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Independent auditor’ s report to the board of directors of
Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (continued)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Responsibilities of the directors for the financia statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give atrue and fair view in accordance
with IFRS and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic

alternative but to do so.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our abjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose.

We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
meateria if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of

users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the Audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Company’s interna control.
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Independent auditor’ s report to the board of directors of
Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (continued)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financia statements (continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a

going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciesin internal control that we identify during our audit.
Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’ s Building

10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong
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